



**MIDWEST  
LITIGATION  
SERVICES**

COURT REPORTING  
& VIDEO

**OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION  
Division of Budget and Planning  
REDISTRICTING OFFICE  
STATE OF MISSOURI**

**SENATE APPORTIONMENT COMMISSION**

**PUBLIC HEARING**

**MAY 23, 2011**

**ORIGINAL**

**NATIONWIDE SCHEDULING**

OFFICES: MISSOURI Springfield Jefferson City Kansas City Columbia Rolla Cape Girardeau ■ KANSAS Overland Park ■ ILLINOIS Springfield

HEADQUARTERS: 711 NORTH ELEVENTH STREET, ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63101

800.280.3376

[www.midwestlitigation.com](http://www.midwestlitigation.com)

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION  
Division of Budget and Planning  
REDISTRICTING OFFICE  
STATE OF MISSOURI

SENATE APPORTIONMENT COMMISSION

Public Hearing  
Monday, May 23, 2011  
9:00 a.m.

Plaster Student Union Ballroom East  
Missouri State University

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25

INDEX

WITNESSES:

PAGE

Commissioner Roseann Bentley

9

Ms. Mavis Busiek

14

Ms. Danette Proctor

22

Mr. Virgil Hill

25

Mr. Gordon Kinne

31

Senator Bob Dixon

28

EXHIBIT

DESCRIPTION

PAGE

Dixon-1

Written testimony of Senator

Bob Dixon (30th)

29

Exhibit attached to original transcript

1 A P P E A R A N C E S

2 SENATE COMMISSIONERS

3 Doug Harpool, Chairman

4 John Maupin, Vice Chairman

5 Jeff Mazur

6 Miles Ross

7 Bob Saunders

8 Kathy Swan

9 Yancy Williams

10

11

12 OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

13 DIVISION OF BUDGET AND PLANNING:

14 Matt Hesser, Kristina Jenkins

15

16

17

18 REPORTED BY: Christine Richele, CSR, RPR, CCR, CRR

19 MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

20 2422 East Madrid Avenue

21 Springfield, MO 65804

22 Tel: 417-877-9700

23 Fax: 417-877-9704

24

25

## 1 P R O C E E D I N G S

2

3 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Welcome. We will  
4 convene this meeting of the Senate Apportionment  
5 Commission created pursuant to Constitution. We are  
6 here today to receive public comment, to hear your  
7 input on what principles, goals, or objectives we  
8 should keep in mind as we fulfill our constitutional  
9 responsibility to rewrite the districts for the State  
10 Senate of Missouri. This process occurs every ten  
11 years, and must, by law and by Constitution. We have  
12 certain legal principles that we have to follow in our  
13 process, but within those constitutional principles,  
14 we do have some discretion, and we will be glad to  
15 hear what you have to tell us. Let me share a little  
16 bit about where we are in the process.

17 This is our second public hearing. My name is  
18 Doug Harpool and I'm the Chairman of the Commission.  
19 Mr. Maupin is the Vice Chairman. We are a bipartisan  
20 commission with people -- members of Democrats and  
21 Republicans. Not all of our members are here, but our  
22 Constitution makes it clear that there must be support  
23 from both sides of the aisle before we can  
24 successfully adopt any map.

25 If this Commission were to fail to reach a map,

1 which is not our intent, not our goal and we're going  
2 to try to avoid, but if that were to happen, then our  
3 courts would be thrust into the process and would end  
4 up making the final decision. We're hopeful that  
5 after hearing public comment, we can get together and  
6 agree on a map that will last for the next ten years.  
7 At the end of that period, of course, there would then  
8 be an additional redistricting period.

9 We had a hearing in Jeff City to receive public  
10 input. We are here today. We will be in Kansas City  
11 tomorrow at one o'clock, and we will be in St. Louis  
12 on Wednesday at one o'clock. The House Commission,  
13 which does house districts, will meet this afternoon,  
14 and then they'll meet mornings in Kansas City and  
15 St. Louis over the next two days. We have no  
16 jurisdiction over house districts, and they have no  
17 jurisdiction over senate districts.

18 So the comments you make today are up to you. We  
19 want to maintain civility, and we want to make you  
20 understand that we're at the very beginning of this  
21 process. No map has been debated or discussed by this  
22 Commission as a whole. There have been maps generated  
23 as starting places, but I make it clear that those are  
24 not maps that this group as a whole has sat down and  
25 debated or discussed or proposed. We are going to

1 have public comment before we sit down as a Commission  
2 and try to come to a final conclusion as to what those  
3 should be.

4 This is a sad morning in Missouri, and we were  
5 hopeful that we would get comment from all of  
6 Southwest Missouri this morning, and we have neighbors  
7 here who have more important things to do. And I've  
8 spoken with our commissioners, and we unanimously are  
9 willing to have other comments submitted to us later  
10 in writing as a result of the more important things  
11 that some of our neighbors have to do.

12 So if you know someone or hear of someone who  
13 wanted to be here, but the more urgent matters of life  
14 took precedence this morning, please tell them to  
15 submit their written documents to any member of our  
16 Commission, to the Office of Administration, and we  
17 have a redistricting office, and we will see that  
18 their input is considered by the board.

19 We thought it appropriate, Vice Chairman Maupin  
20 and I, that we start this proceeding with a brief  
21 moment of silence where we each think and exercise our  
22 freedom under the First Amendment, thinking of those  
23 victims in Joplin, our neighbors who have suffered  
24 such devastation. So would you join me in just a  
25 brief moment of silence.

1 (MOMENT OF SILENCE.)

2 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Thank you. We have a  
3 couple members that were not able to be here today,  
4 but rest assured that every member will have the  
5 benefit of whatever comment you want to provide,  
6 because we do have a court reporter with us. All  
7 proceedings of this Commission will be recorded,  
8 transcribed, and available to every member to use in  
9 deliberation.

10 That transcript also will be available to any  
11 court that ultimately would review either by challenge  
12 of something this Commission would decide upon or if  
13 this Commission fails to reach agreement. So, please  
14 be sure that when you make comments that you're  
15 mindful that a court reporter is trying to take down  
16 your testimony.

17 Also, please understand, members of the  
18 Commission, try to identify yourself as you begin  
19 questioning so that the court reporter can know who it  
20 is that's asking questions and so that your questions  
21 can be appropriately assigned on the transcript.

22 All right. I know that the Missouri State  
23 University, my alma mater, has been a gracious host  
24 and has sent a representative to open our proceedings.

25 And there is a witness form we need you to fill

1 out, by the way, if you testify just, again, for  
2 record purposes.

3 MR. McCLURE: Mr. Chairman, members of the  
4 Commission, good morning. My name is Ken McClure and  
5 I'm vice president for administrative and information  
6 services here at Missouri State University. On behalf  
7 of our president, James Cofer, I do want to welcome  
8 you to our campus. This is a good time for you to be  
9 here in the sense that it's quiet. If you'd been here  
10 a little over a week ago, we would have had 23,000  
11 students on campus, a lot of traffic, a lot of  
12 activity. And, of course, this is the time between  
13 our spring semester and the opening of our summer  
14 semester, so it is a good time. It's a busy time. A  
15 lot of construction going on as we do some of the work  
16 on our residence halls, university recreation center,  
17 so you'll see that activity as you go along.

18 Your activities certainly are very consistent with  
19 our Public Affairs Commission, and certainly we're  
20 delighted to have this event on campus and be a part  
21 of this very important policy discussion.

22 As you referenced, Chairman Harpool, the House  
23 Committee will be here this afternoon and we're just  
24 delighted to have you on campus. If there's,  
25 certainly, anything that you need, your Commission or

1 your staff members, we're here at your disposal today.  
2 We want to make sure that you've got all the resources  
3 available to you.

4 So, again, very glad to have you on campus. We  
5 welcome you and certainly wish you the best today as  
6 you go through your activities.

7 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Thank you. We  
8 appreciate your hospitality.

9 I assume there are no questions of Mr. McClure.  
10 We have no particular order of business, but we  
11 are willing to receive public testimony now. Can I  
12 get just a general idea of how many people wish to  
13 provide testimony, just for time purposes?

14 All right. Commissioner Bentley, would you like  
15 to come first? Should I say "senator" or  
16 "commissioner" or "senator/commissioner"?

17 COMMISSIONER BENTLEY: Thank you,  
18 Mr. Chairman, and welcome to the members of the  
19 Commission. Thank you for the work you're doing. As  
20 you referenced, I was a senator from the 30th District  
21 from '95 to '03, and so I have a great fondness for  
22 the 30th District and all it represents. I've always  
23 thought that it was the best district in the senate  
24 because of its uniformity and it took in all of  
25 Springfield. Basically it's just a really -- a

1 district far different from others in that it was so  
2 geometrically a circle, and really great.

3 It's wonderful to see that Southwest Missouri is  
4 the fastest-growing part of the state, and we always  
5 hope that some day we'll be as strong in the senate as  
6 St. Louis and Kansas City. But those days probably  
7 are far, far from now.

8 But I just want to thank you for serving and also  
9 ask that you try to keep that feeling of cohesion and  
10 uniformity that the 30th District has had, has been  
11 fortunate to have. So, thank you again.

12 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Could you take  
13 questions, please.

14 COMMISSIONER BENTLEY: Sure.

15 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: What you're saying is  
16 you think the city limits of the City of Springfield,  
17 to the extent they can fit in one district, they  
18 should?

19 COMMISSIONER BENTLEY: I think that would  
20 be very recognizable and easy to define and helpful to  
21 the citizens to know exactly what the district is.  
22 But it may not be possible, I recognize that. You may  
23 have to go, you know, further abroad than the city  
24 limits. And certainly, being now a Greene County  
25 Commissioner, we would welcome you into the county

1    however far you need to go.

2                   VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN:  Commissioner, I'm  
3    John Maupin.  What is the population, according to the  
4    last census, of Springfield, the City of Springfield?

5                   COMMISSIONER BENTLEY:  Well, the county is  
6    275,000.  I don't know what the city limits are.  
7    Anybody can help me.

8                   MS. BUSIEK:  179,669 is the 30th Senatorial  
9    District.

10                  COMMISSIONER BENTLEY:  Thank you.  179,000,  
11    approximately, is the 30th District.

12                  CHAIRMAN HARPOOL:  Any other questions?  We  
13    do need you to fill out one of those forms, and if you  
14    would leave it with staff --

15                  COMMISSIONER BENTLEY:  Be glad to.

16                  CHAIRMAN HARPOOL:  -- over there.

17                  COMMISSIONER BENTLEY:  Thank you.

18                  CHAIRMAN HARPOOL:  Anyone else wishing --

19                  COMMISSIONER BENTLEY:  May I say one more  
20    thing?

21                  CHAIRMAN HARPOOL:  Yes, please do.

22                  COMMISSIONER BENTLEY:  I forgot my duties.  
23    I did want to mention, just, not in regard to this but  
24    in regard to the terrible destruction and horrific  
25    damage and loss of life in Joplin, Greene County has

1 sent as many departments as can be helpful there.

2 The highway department is sending heavy lifting  
3 machine -- moving machinery, the sheriff's department  
4 is there for law enforcement, and our emergency  
5 management with its Skylab is down there trying to  
6 help with the communications. I'm sure I'm leaving  
7 out somebody. So we are standing ready to help our  
8 neighbors in this cataclysmic event.

9 COMMISSIONER ROSS: Senator, before you go,  
10 if you wouldn't mind, this is Miles Ross, would you  
11 spell your name for the court reporter, please.

12 COMMISSIONER BENTLEY: Oh, sure. Roseann  
13 Bentley, R-O-S-E-A-N-N B-E-N-T-L-E-Y.

14 COMMISSIONER ROSS: And could I ask you one  
15 question?

16 COMMISSIONER BENTLEY: Sure.

17 COMMISSIONER ROSS: When you were serving  
18 as senator, when you had citizens call into your  
19 office for help with state agencies, you found --  
20 obviously, you found it was easier, when you would ask  
21 them where they lived, that they lived in the City of  
22 Springfield; could you give a little reference to  
23 that? You know --

24 COMMISSIONER BENTLEY: Well, I guess I  
25 would say that anybody who called the office, you

1 know, you would either try to ascertain if they were  
2 in your district or not.

3 COMMISSIONER ROSS: Right.

4 COMMISSIONER BENTLEY: I always tried to  
5 give them some assistance regardless. But, yes, it is  
6 nice to have that cohesion, that you can quickly  
7 identify if they need to be speaking to another  
8 senator.

9 COMMISSIONER ROSS: Okay. All right.  
10 Thank you.

11 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Before we take another  
12 witness, we need to take up an item of business. I  
13 voluntarily skipped the approval of the minutes  
14 without asking my Commission before doing so, because  
15 the secretary had not yet prepared the minutes from  
16 the last meeting. But that's the reason we skipped  
17 that on the agenda. And we need to appoint someone  
18 else to take minutes for today's meeting, since our  
19 secretary is not present. So would someone be willing  
20 to take up that duty?

21 VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: I nominate Miles  
22 Ross.

23 COMMISSIONER MAZUR: Second.

24 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Seeing no other  
25 nominations, all in favor of Miles Ross say "aye."

1 (NUMEROUS AYES.)

2 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Opposed, "no"?

3 (NONE.)

4 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Miles, thank you for  
5 volunteering.

6 COMMISSIONER ROSS: Thank you. I'd like  
7 the term "railroaded" to be entered.

8 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Let me -- I should say,  
9 since we are in Springfield, that three of our members  
10 are from the Springfield area: Lawyer Joe Passanise  
11 was not able to be here today, but he is on the  
12 Commission; Mr. Ross is from Springfield, and I am  
13 from Springfield.

14 Now, anyone else wishing to testify to the  
15 Commission?

16 MS. BUSIEK: Mr. Chairman and members of  
17 the Commission, first I want to thank you for this  
18 awesome job and venture. It's hard but it's worthy.  
19 I appreciate you all taking time out of your busy  
20 schedules. And it will get worse as it goes, trust  
21 me.

22 Ten years ago I sat where you are sitting, and  
23 we -- I sat on the Senate Commission and the House  
24 Commission. It's a difficult task, and I'm here to  
25 ask for two things: My first request is, of course,

1 as you all know, to draw maps that respect our  
2 communities. But, like Mrs. Bentley, I ask that the  
3 City of Springfield be kept as a whole.

4 When we drew the senate maps ten years ago, it was  
5 very, very difficult. We got a new senate seat that  
6 year, the 20th Senatorial District. And it was  
7 difficult trying to put in a new senatorial district  
8 and keep the city as a whole. It was tough. Actually  
9 we had submitted a map that was similar to the ones  
10 the courts drew, and it was called down here "the  
11 doughnut hole." The doughnut is the county. The hole  
12 is the City of Springfield. The doughnut goes with  
13 Christian, right now, and Douglas and Webster.

14 In Southwest Missouri we have five senatorial  
15 seats. Jasper and Newton are like communities and do  
16 very well together. The northern one is much the  
17 same. Geographically, it's a little problem, but it's  
18 much the same. So is our southern one.

19 The city, as Mrs. -- as Mr. Ross asked  
20 Mrs. Bentley, those of you who have been elected,  
21 Mr. Harpool you know this, and those of you that have  
22 worked in politics know that by the time a constituent  
23 calls a state rep or a senator, they're not wishing to  
24 say happy birthday. They're stressed out about a  
25 problem that they cannot solve and people cannot solve

1 for them. So when they get to their senator and they  
2 voice their problem and then they're told, This is not  
3 the right senator, you have to call Mr. X, it only  
4 stresses them out more.

5 And we're not here to draw maps for sitting  
6 senators or for senators in the future. We're here to  
7 draw maps for the citizens of Missouri. And so I  
8 believe that it would be doing a great favor for  
9 Springfield to keep it as a whole. We have problems  
10 or had problems in the past, and have tried to work  
11 very hard to solve them, with north Springfield  
12 against south Springfield. We don't want to divide  
13 Springfield any more. I want a whole Springfield. I  
14 live in this city. I don't live in the north or the  
15 south. I live in the city.

16 And so I would ask the committee to please  
17 consider keeping Springfield as a whole. And I think  
18 an ideal 20th Senatorial District is the county of  
19 Christian and the county of Greene because it's very,  
20 very much alike.

21 Ten years ago we did not draw a map, and I've  
22 always felt somehow we failed. When we testified in  
23 front of the Court to draw a map, the Speaker of the  
24 House, Representative Kreider, testified right after I  
25 did, and he, too, asked for the city to be kept as a

1 whole. He did not live in the city, but he asked for  
2 the city to be kept as a whole. And I believe almost  
3 anybody that would testify before this panel would ask  
4 that the city be kept as a whole. So that's my number  
5 one request and it's very important.

6 Number two, I would ask that you draw a map. If  
7 we go through the trouble of our state party and our  
8 congressional parties nominating people, having you  
9 agree to serve or not to serve, sending them to the  
10 governor, waiting anxiously for an appointment,  
11 getting it and then not completing your task, why do  
12 we do it to begin with, if it's always going to go to  
13 the courts?

14 So I'm asking you that as a very possibility,  
15 compromise is something you're all going to have to  
16 do, on both sides of the aisle. But I would like to  
17 see this Commission bring out a map. Yes, that's your  
18 job.

19 I'm very happy to hear that no map has been  
20 discussed, because gossip was floating out there that  
21 it had been. I didn't think it was very nice to have  
22 a map before testimony was given, so I'm very happy to  
23 hear, sir, that no map has been discussed and no map  
24 will be discussed until testimony is taken from the  
25 citizens.

1 With that, that's all I have to say. My name is  
2 spelled Mavis, M-A-V-I-S, Busiek, B-U-S-I-E-K.

3 Keep your questions easy, please.

4 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Before we go further, I,  
5 humorously, will say that the two people most  
6 responsible for me never being a state senator have  
7 been our first two witnesses.

8 MS. BUSIEK: Don't hold that against us,  
9 please.

10 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: But we welcome you.

11 And there's some question about -- there is a map  
12 has been distributed. It's actually one that I helped  
13 put together, but it's not one that this Commission  
14 has debated or discussed, and it actually keeps  
15 Springfield together and makes a doughnut hole around  
16 it, but now makes me rethink it now that I hear --  
17 no --

18 MS. BUSIEK: Well, your population, sir, is  
19 179,669 and your ideal is one seventy-six and change.  
20 So you only have 3,000 people and you don't have a  
21 deviation. I mean, I think you're within the  
22 percentage of deviation, so I think it's almost a  
23 perfect situation here. And since we just came out of  
24 elections and had elections in both of those  
25 districts, in four of the five, and it's difficult to

1 just keep on having elections. And when we do, what  
2 happens is when we have more elections and have open  
3 census again, a lot of our county people rise to  
4 senatorial races, and then we lose a lot of our good  
5 county people. So --

6 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: I should -- one of the  
7 legal issues we must take into consideration -- as I  
8 mentioned earlier, we have legal parameters. One is  
9 continuity of interest or community of interest, and I  
10 think that's kind of what our first two witnesses are  
11 talking about in Springfield, a community of interest.

12 MS. BUSIEK: Yes.

13 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: That is one criteria we  
14 are to consider. Obviously there are several other  
15 criteria we also have to consider.

16 Are there questions of this witness?

17 COMMISSIONER MAZUR: This is Jeff Mazur. I  
18 would just note for the record and for Ms. Busiek's  
19 benefit that the map that Doug mentioned that had been  
20 created but not discussed by this Commission, draws  
21 district exactitudes around the City of Springfield  
22 kept separately, the remainder of Greene County added  
23 in with Christian County to create that surrounding  
24 district. So, just for your benefit --

25 MS. BUSIEK: I'm liking this Commission

1 already.

2 COMMISSIONER MAZUR: Thank you for your  
3 testimony.

4 COMMISSIONER ROSS: Ms. Busiek, could you  
5 state for the record what your job title is and maybe  
6 a description of what you do.

7 MS. BUSIEK: I'm the executive director of  
8 the 7th Congressional District Committee. My job is  
9 to recruit, teach, train, and elect Republican  
10 candidates.

11 COMMISSIONER ROSS: And so, Mrs. Busiek --

12 MS. BUSIEK: And that's not a hard job in  
13 this part of the state.

14 COMMISSIONER ROSS: So you travel all over  
15 Southwest Missouri and you've worked in many of these  
16 senatorial districts; is that correct?

17 MS. BUSIEK: Yes. We have ten counties in  
18 the 7th Congressional District, and I have worked in  
19 all of them, with all of the senatorial candidates and  
20 now senators.

21 COMMISSIONER ROSS: And, ma'am, how many  
22 years have you done that?

23 MS. BUSIEK: Since '97.

24 COMMISSIONER ROSS: Is there -- are there  
25 any other senatorial districts that you'd like to make

1 remarks on? I mean, you know, talk about any other  
2 communities of interest, or since some of the folks  
3 from Joplin obviously couldn't be here today, any  
4 discussion on that end of the district?

5 MS. BUSIEK: Well, the Jasper County/Newton  
6 County senatorial district is probably ideal. They  
7 have similar interests. You can go from Joplin in  
8 Jasper to Joplin in Newton and not know you crossed  
9 the line. And I think their numbers are ideal. They  
10 have Dade County in that district now, and that's  
11 probably going to be the amount that they're over, the  
12 five, or whatever, thousand people who are in Dade.

13 The northern part, Senator Parson, gossip is out  
14 there that we probably will get maybe a senatorial  
15 seat, a new one, or a half of one. I don't know how  
16 you will draw your maps to do that. I have not drawn  
17 a map. I will ask my party to draw a map for me.  
18 That's also a very good senatorial district because  
19 the counties are so much alike.

20 The 20th is ideal.

21 The 29th runs across the southern part of the  
22 district, it goes from McDonald to Ozark. It's going  
23 to have to lose something or we're going to have to  
24 lose Lawrence. We're a little bit overpopulated.  
25 People love to come to this area to live, and we're

1 very proud of that.

2 So we don't have any real differences other than  
3 when you get -- now, when you get to Branson, Taney  
4 and Stone are very much alike. When you go into  
5 Ozark, you start going agricultural and it's not --  
6 the interest is not the same. Taney and Stone,  
7 there's not much differences. Barry and McDonald and  
8 Lawrence is very much alike. So I have no idea what  
9 you're going to do as a Commission, but you should  
10 take those things into consideration.

11 Thank you.

12 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Other questions of this  
13 witness?

14 Be sure and take a witness form with you, if you  
15 would, and submit it before you leave.

16 MS. BUSIEK: Yes, sir.

17 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: All right. Thank you.

18 MS. BUSIEK: Thank you very much for your  
19 time and thank you for your service, and I'll pray for  
20 you all.

21 VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: Thank you, Mavis.

22 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Others who wish to  
23 present testimony to the Senate Commission?

24 MS. PROCTOR: Good morning, thank you for  
25 being here this morning on this sad day in Southwest

1 Missouri.

2 My name is Danette Proctor, D-A-N-E-T-T-E  
3 P-R-O-C-T-O-R, address P.O. 548, Willard, Missouri.  
4 Physical address, 3802 West Riverbend Lane.

5 Senate District 30 is currently all of the  
6 Springfield city wards and a handful of wards in the  
7 county contiguous to the city limits of Springfield,  
8 going south to our Greene County line. The 20th  
9 Senate District is basically the remainder of Greene  
10 County with the addition of Webster, Christian, and  
11 Douglas, and I am in the 20th Senatorial District.  
12 Currently, the 20th and 30th Senatorial Districts are  
13 contiguous and compact districts with like interests.  
14 We would like to continue this.

15 We would like to see the Commission keep  
16 communities together that have like interests. For  
17 example, we would not like to see a scenario of  
18 pulling out to Willard to get your extra people.  
19 Willard is -- has a rural atmosphere and falls more in  
20 line with a few of the rural Greene County and not  
21 with Springfield. Thus, it fits better with the other  
22 20th, such as Fair Grove, Walnut Grove, and Willard --  
23 or Republic.

24 Several wards contiguous to the City of  
25 Springfield would be a much better fit to pair up with

1 the City of Springfield to get your numbers that you  
2 need for the 30th District.

3 Cities should be kept together if possible.  
4 Voting precincts should not be split if possible.

5 And I've heard this now, but I was requesting that  
6 no map be drawn until you've heard testimony from all  
7 the citizens, because it's not fair when maps are  
8 drawn. But I've heard maps have been drawn. I would  
9 ask that you try to void those from your mind and  
10 listen to testimony, and then draw maps after you've  
11 heard from everyone and their testimony.

12 I would like to thank each of you for accepting  
13 responsibility and serving on this Commission. I know  
14 it takes a lot of time and talent, and I appreciate  
15 that from all of you. It's very tedious and trying  
16 and we trust that you will make the right decisions  
17 for the people in the State of Missouri. Thank you  
18 very much.

19 VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: Mrs. Proctor, I'm  
20 John Maupin. You say Willard is now in the 20th. You  
21 want to make sure it doesn't go to the 30th; is that  
22 right?

23 MS. PROCTOR: Right, because it's a rural  
24 community such as Ash Grove, Fair Grove, Republic.  
25 Springfield is unique and, as you've heard from the

1 other two testimonies, should be kept together. And  
2 if you do need more, keep with your contiguous wards  
3 that are close. Don't go out and grab another town.

4 VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: I'm sure you've seen  
5 population trends and you know Southwest Missouri is  
6 really a haven for new residents over the last decade.

7 MS. PROCTOR: Yes.

8 VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: If we have to, if  
9 another senate seat moves into the general Southwest  
10 Missouri area, do you have an idea or any suggestions  
11 where you would like to see that occur; along the  
12 edges, or just a new seat, or what would be your  
13 preference?

14 MS. PROCTOR: I have not thought that  
15 through, but I would love to discuss that with you and  
16 visit with some other people. I think that's  
17 exciting. I'd love to hear that.

18 VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: Thank you.

19 MS. PROCTOR: You're welcome.

20 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: All right. Thank you.

21 Anyone else wishing to present testimony to the  
22 Senate Apportionment Commission?

23 Mr. Hill, come on.

24 MR. HILL: Mr. Chairman and members of the  
25 Commission, my name is Virgil Hill, V-I-R-G-I-L

1 H-I-L-L, lifelong resident of Springfield. Although I  
2 had not anticipated making remarks, I thought it was  
3 important to get at least one person that typically  
4 has a "D" behind their name to speak. And as with the  
5 Chair, I'm not an officeholder, and the principal  
6 reasons that I'm not to some degree are because of  
7 some of those witnesses that preceded me.

8 Notwithstanding that, I am wholly in alignment  
9 with the perspective that's been offered here today.  
10 I certainly would advocate for the notion of  
11 continuing to maintain the 30th District as roughly  
12 contiguous with the boundaries of the City of  
13 Springfield. If you look at the demography as  
14 reflected by the Springfield Public Schools, it is  
15 abundantly clear that Springfield is becoming evermore  
16 an urban center. It is representing the demographic  
17 characteristics of urban centers in the state.

18 Whereas, that area that is outside the 30th,  
19 currently contained within the 20th, is essentially  
20 suburban, ex-urban, and rural.

21 Therefore, the continuity of interests with regard  
22 to contiguous districts, it would make far more sense  
23 to retain the characteristics that have been expressed  
24 in this draft map that's been referenced here so far  
25 today.

1           So, I think clearly in regard to the change in  
2 demography of the community, which Mr. Maupin, you've  
3 referenced in terms of increasing population growth in  
4 the area, that growth really is reflected in these  
5 outlying areas, and it does take on the  
6 characteristics of suburban, ex-urban, and retained  
7 rural characteristics.

8           Springfield proper is becoming ever more urbanized  
9 in its demography, in its ethnic diversity, certainly  
10 in the economic status of the residents of the City of  
11 Springfield, as reflected again in the student  
12 population of the Springfield schools, which is not  
13 entirely identical to the city limits, but roughly so.  
14 And we're now seeing, I think, this year, and  
15 Superintendent Ridder is back here and knows exactly,  
16 we're roughly at 50 percent or so with the free lunch,  
17 which represents a substantial growth and a continuing  
18 movement toward greater evidence of lower income  
19 population in the city.

20           For those of us who have lived here forever, as I  
21 have -- it seems like, certainly, forever sometimes --  
22 seen the changes that have occurred. The north  
23 Springfield and west Springfield, which I'm a native  
24 of, characteristics have begun to be evermore evident  
25 further and further south in the community; i.e., more

1 poverty, higher elderly population, clearly greater  
2 ethnic racial diversity. Those are all elements, I  
3 think, again, that need to be taken into account by  
4 the Commission in regard to establishing the  
5 districts, and, therefore, the notion of maintaining  
6 the 30th uniquely as an urban district reflected by  
7 the Springfield boundaries as opposed to the 20th,  
8 representing suburban, ex-urban and rural, would be  
9 best.

10 Now, as to a new district, the criteria, again,  
11 that I think needs to be established is to not divide  
12 Springfield, to place that in an area that would  
13 otherwise be able to retain characteristics that would  
14 be consistent both in terms of geographic contiguity  
15 and in terms of the community interests that were  
16 mentioned.

17 I'd welcome any questions.

18 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Any questions? I see  
19 none. Be sure and fill the form out. Thank you.

20 MR. HILL: Thank you.

21 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Any further testimony?  
22 Welcome, Senator.

23 SENATOR DIXON: Good morning. I'll be  
24 brief. For the record, Bob Dixon, currently  
25 representing District 30. And in light of the

1 Chairman's comments, I will keep my comments very  
2 brief so that we leave time for other witnesses.

3 I'm actually going to present a written testimony  
4 to the committee. And I don't want to duplicate  
5 anything that's already been said this morning, so I  
6 just have three points --

7 COMMISSIONER SWAN: Excuse me. Mr. Chair,  
8 he is not able to be heard from the back of the room.  
9 If you would speak a little louder.

10 SENATOR DIXON: I will speak up. I  
11 apologize.

12 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Thank you.

13 SENATOR DIXON: Just three ideas,  
14 recommendations, if you would keep these in mind.  
15 Number one, preserve the current configuration of the  
16 30th where an undivided City of Springfield is  
17 contained entirely within one district. Again, back  
18 to that community of interest point. Join Christian  
19 and part of Greene together as the 20th. And, number  
20 three, that was -- number three, reassign the  
21 necessary precincts between the 20th and 30th to  
22 achieve as near population equality as possible.

23 Again, I have written testimony that I'll leave  
24 with the staff. There are a few ideas that I've put  
25 together with maps of the two counties, and that's

1 really all I have. I want to thank you very much for  
2 your willingness to serve. I know it's a thankless  
3 job. You're going to be having a lot of people  
4 tugging on you and of course a lot of travel. Thank  
5 you for being willing to do it.

6 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: All right. Be sure and  
7 fill out a form and leave your comments.

8 Are there questions of the Senator?

9 Without the benefit of your map, you generally say  
10 continue what was referred to earlier as the doughnut  
11 configuration?

12 SENATOR DIXON: Yes.

13 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: City of Springfield in  
14 the middle and take the rest of the area and put it  
15 with rural areas?

16 SENATOR DIXON: (Nodding head.)

17 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: I see no questions.  
18 Thank you, Senator.

19 SENATOR DIXON: Thank you.

20 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Others to testify?

21 Yes, Mr. Kinne. This is Gordon Kinne. Before he  
22 starts, I was once a student body president of this  
23 institution, and I would just say that Gordon Kinne  
24 was in student government before I was.

25 MR. KINNE: That's true.

1 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Go ahead.

2 MR. KINNE: Mr. Chairman, welcome to  
3 Springfield. You didn't have to come very far.

4 Gordon Kinne. How are you, ma'am? I know her  
5 son. Used to play soccer together. Well, not me, but  
6 our sons did, I guess.

7 I'm a local businessman. G-O-R-D-O-N, K-I-N-N-E.  
8 Also currently serve as the chairman of the Southern  
9 District Republican Party.

10 All I would ask you to do is -- we have so much  
11 rancor, so much partisanship, so much division in our  
12 country right now. We saw a little bit of this with  
13 the congressional redistricting map that went on, and  
14 you're in very capable hands. Mr. Harpool and I  
15 haven't always agreed, but he's a good man, a good  
16 citizen, and a good lawyer. And I would just hope  
17 that you can set all that aside and actually develop a  
18 map and can show some unity for our state. God knows  
19 we need a lot of unity in our country right now.  
20 That's all I really wanted to say.

21 And I really thank you for taking on the charge to  
22 do this because I know everybody's busy. That's just  
23 my comment. May you be successful in your goal here.

24 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Any other questions  
25 of --

1 VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: Mr. Kinne, I'm John  
2 Maupin.

3 For the record, do you support the testimony we've  
4 already heard about keeping the 30th as basically the  
5 City of Springfield and the 20th as Christian and the  
6 rest of Greene?

7 MR. KINNE: I'm pretty much hand in hand  
8 with that. I've brought statistics and, having been a  
9 past officer in the Chamber of Commerce and things  
10 like that, Springfield has a lot of issues, as  
11 Mr. Hill mentioned. I think we need to have our own  
12 representative for the city, because the city is  
13 fairly diverse. And from a political standpoint,  
14 that's probably the best opportunity for any  
15 diversity, if you understand what I'm saying, and a  
16 senator to come out of here. So I pretty much agree  
17 with that.

18 Our MSA that we use at the chamber kind of goes  
19 Polk, down, Webster, we kind of use Dallas County,  
20 that area, for the MSA for a lot of measurement, just  
21 here. So I would say any growth you might want to  
22 look, you know, going further to the -- well, I mean,  
23 we can't go south, obviously, and we can't go very far  
24 to the west. So, to the east and northeast is  
25 probably the best place.

1           But I think the city proper is -- if we could get  
2 a senate seat that's pretty much defined by the city  
3 limits, it would be great.

4           VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: If you had a crystal  
5 ball looking out another ten years, where do you  
6 anticipate additional growth to come in the next ten  
7 years?

8           MR. KINNE: Well, I think you'll still  
9 continue to see growth down in the Nixa and Ozark  
10 area, just because of land availability. We're  
11 starting to see some push north, though, because of  
12 land availability, you know, north in between  
13 Springfield and Polk County. Of course, the county  
14 commissioner was here, but the Greene County  
15 population moved to the west, so they had to do some  
16 redistricting, too, so the Republic-Willard area. So,  
17 I think the next surge of growth is probably going to  
18 be this direction. That would be north and west some,  
19 seems like.

20           VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: Thank you very much.

21           CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Would you agree it would  
22 probably be more border of Springfield instead of city  
23 limits of Springfield?

24           MR. KINNE: Yes, I think so.

25           CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Any other questions?

1 Thank you, Mr. Kinne.

2 MR. KINNE: Thank you. Thanks for serving.

3 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Anyone else wishing to  
4 testify to the Commission? I'm not an auctioneer.  
5 The only one I know is in Congress. Going once --  
6 actually I do want to make one comment. No member of  
7 this Commission will be eligible to run for Senate for  
8 the next eight years. I believe that's right.

9 MS. BUSIEK: Yes.

10 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: And that is a protection  
11 of ethics, that we're not up here trying to write  
12 districts for ourselves and --

13 COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS: Mr. Chairman, four  
14 years.

15 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Four? I thought for the  
16 Senate it was eight. Is it just four years? Okay,  
17 I'm wrong. It's four years.

18 VICE CHAIRMAN MAUPIN: I demand eight.

19 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: All of my law partners  
20 would be willing to enact that eight-year exclusion, I  
21 guarantee it, or maybe twelve, if I do it.

22 No one else has anything? No input. Please, if  
23 you do know someone who was not able to be here today  
24 because of the tragic circumstances or just someone  
25 who was not able to be here who has something to add

1 to the discourse, please have them submit their ideas  
2 and their information. We'll consider it. We'll look  
3 at it. Our goal is to get a map and I think we all  
4 will feel like we've failed if we don't. And as I  
5 think Mr. Kinne said, we're going to have to set aside  
6 partisan differences to get one. Thank you for being  
7 here. We are adjourned.

8 COMMISSIONER MAZUR: A motion for  
9 adjournment.

10 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Is there a second?

11 COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS: Second.

12 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: All in favor of  
13 adjournment say "aye."

14 (NUMEROUS AYES.)

15 CHAIRMAN HARPOOL: Opposed, "no"?

16 (NONE.)

17 (PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:45 A.M.)

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



<p><b>A</b></p> <p>able 7:3 14:11 28:13 29:8 34:23 34:25</p> <p>about 4:16 15:24 18:11 19:11 21:1 32:4</p> <p>abroad 10:23</p> <p>abundantly 26:15</p> <p>accepting 24:12</p> <p>according 11:3</p> <p>account 28:3</p> <p>accurate 36:17</p> <p>achieve 29:22</p> <p>across 21:21</p> <p>activities 8:18 9:6</p> <p>activity 8:12,17</p> <p>actually 15:8 18:12 18:14 29:3 31:17 34:6</p> <p>add 34:25</p> <p>added 19:22</p> <p>addition 23:10</p> <p>additional 5:8 33:6</p> <p>address 23:3,4</p> <p>adjourned 35:7</p> <p>adjournment 35:9 35:13</p> <p>Administration 1:4 3:12 6:16</p> <p>administrative 8:5</p> <p>adopt 4:24</p> <p>advocate 26:10</p> <p>Affairs 8:19</p> <p>after 5:5 16:24 24:10</p> <p>afternoon 5:13 8:23</p> <p>again 8:1 9:4 10:11 19:3 27:11 28:3 28:10 29:17,23</p> <p>against 16:12 18:8</p> <p>agencies 12:19</p> <p>agenda 13:17</p> <p>ago 8:10 14:22 15:4 16:21</p> <p>agree 5:6 17:9 32:16 33:21</p> <p>agreed 31:15</p> <p>agreement 7:13</p> <p>agricultural 22:5</p> <p>ahead 31:1</p> <p>aisle 4:23 17:16</p> <p>alignment 26:8</p> <p>alike 16:20 21:19 22:4,8</p> <p>alma 7:23</p> <p>almost 17:2 18:22</p>	<p>along 8:17 25:11</p> <p>already 20:1 29:5 32:4</p> <p>Although 26:1</p> <p>always 9:22 10:4 13:4 16:22 17:12 31:15</p> <p>Amendment 6:22</p> <p>amount 21:11</p> <p>another 13:7,11 25:3,9 33:5</p> <p>anticipate 33:6</p> <p>anticipated 26:2</p> <p>anxiously 17:10</p> <p>anybody 11:7 12:25 17:3</p> <p>anyone 11:18 14:14 25:21 34:3</p> <p>anything 8:25 29:5 34:22</p> <p>apologize 29:11</p> <p>appoint 13:17</p> <p>appointment 17:10</p> <p>Apportionment 1:10 4:4 25:22</p> <p>appreciate 9:8 14:19 24:14</p> <p>appropriate 6:19</p> <p>appropriately 7:21</p> <p>approval 13:13</p> <p>approximately 11:11</p> <p>area 14:10 21:25 25:10 26:18 27:4 28:12 30:14 32:20 33:10,16</p> <p>areas 27:5 30:15</p> <p>around 18:15 19:21</p> <p>ascertain 13:1</p> <p>Ash 24:24</p> <p>aside 31:17 35:5</p> <p>asked 15:19 16:25 17:1</p> <p>asking 7:20 13:14 17:14</p> <p>assigned 7:21</p> <p>assistance 13:5</p> <p>assume 9:9</p> <p>assured 7:4</p> <p>atmosphere 23:19</p> <p>attached 2:23</p> <p>auctioneer 34:4</p> <p>availability 33:10 33:12</p> <p>available 7:8,10 9:3</p> <p>Avenue 3:20</p> <p>avoid 5:2</p>	<p>awesome 14:18</p> <p>aye 13:25 35:13</p> <p>AYES 14:1 35:14</p> <p>a.m 1:14 35:17</p> <p><b>B</b></p> <p>back 27:15 29:8,17</p> <p>ball 33:5</p> <p>Ballroom 1:15</p> <p>Barry 22:7</p> <p>basically 9:25 23:9 32:4</p> <p>becoming 26:15 27:8</p> <p>before 4:23 6:1 12:9 13:11,14 17:3,22 18:4 22:15 30:21 30:24</p> <p>begin 7:18 17:12</p> <p>beginning 5:20</p> <p>begun 27:24</p> <p>behalf 8:6</p> <p>behind 26:4</p> <p>being 10:24 18:6 22:25 30:5 35:6</p> <p>believe 16:8 17:2 34:8</p> <p>benefit 7:5 19:19,24 30:9</p> <p>Bentley 2:4 9:14,17 10:14,19 11:5,10 11:15,17,19,22 12:12,13,16,24 13:4 15:2,20</p> <p>best 9:5,23 28:9 32:14,25</p> <p>better 23:21,25</p> <p>between 8:12 29:21 33:12</p> <p>bipartisan 4:19</p> <p>birthday 15:24</p> <p>bit 4:16 21:24 31:12</p> <p>board 6:18</p> <p>Bob 2:14,19 3:7 28:24</p> <p>body 30:22</p> <p>border 33:22</p> <p>both 4:23 17:16 18:24 28:14</p> <p>boundaries 26:12 28:7</p> <p>Branson 22:3</p> <p>brief 6:20,25 28:24 29:2</p> <p>bring 17:17</p> <p>brought 32:8</p> <p>Budget 1:5 3:13</p>	<p>Busiek 2:6 11:8 14:16 18:2,8,18 19:12,25 20:4,7 20:11,12,17,23 21:5 22:16,18 34:9</p> <p>Busiek's 19:18</p> <p>business 9:10 13:12</p> <p>businessman 31:7</p> <p>busy 8:14 14:19 31:22</p> <p><b>B-E-N-T-L-E-Y</b> 12:13</p> <p><b>B-U-S-I-E-K</b> 18:2</p> <p><b>C</b></p> <p>C 3:1 4:1</p> <p>call 12:18 16:3</p> <p>called 12:25 15:10</p> <p>calls 15:23</p> <p>came 18:23</p> <p>campus 8:8,11,20 8:24 9:4</p> <p>candidates 20:10,19</p> <p>capable 31:14</p> <p>caption 36:13</p> <p>cataclysmic 12:8</p> <p>CCR 3:18 36:23</p> <p>census 11:4 19:3</p> <p>center 8:16 26:16</p> <p>centers 26:17</p> <p>certain 4:12</p> <p>certainly 8:18,19,25 9:5 10:24 26:10 27:9,21</p> <p><b>CERTIFICATE</b> 36:1</p> <p>Certified 36:8,9,10</p> <p>certify 36:12</p> <p>Chair 26:5 29:7</p> <p>chairman 3:3,4 4:3 4:18,19 6:19 7:2 8:3,22 9:7,18 10:12,15 11:2,12 11:16,18,21 13:11 13:21,24 14:2,4,8 14:16 18:4,10 19:6,13 22:12,17 22:21,22 24:19 25:4,8,18,20,24 28:18,21 29:12 30:6,13,17,20 31:1,2,8,24 32:1 33:4,20,21,25 34:3,10,13,15,18 34:19 35:10,12,15</p> <p>Chairman's 29:1</p>	<p>challenge 7:11</p> <p>chamber 32:9,18</p> <p>change 18:19 27:1</p> <p>changes 27:22</p> <p>characteristics 26:17,23 27:6,7 27:24 28:13</p> <p>charge 31:21</p> <p>Christian 15:13 16:19 19:23 23:10 29:18 32:5</p> <p>Christine 3:18 36:8 36:23</p> <p>circle 10:2</p> <p>circumstances 34:24</p> <p>Cities 24:3</p> <p>citizen 31:16</p> <p>citizens 10:21 12:18 16:7 17:25 24:7</p> <p>city 5:9,10,14 10:6 10:16,16,23 11:4 11:6 12:21 15:3,8 15:12,19 16:14,15 16:25 17:1,2,4 19:21 23:6,7,24 24:1 26:12 27:10 27:13,19 29:16 30:13 32:5,12,12 33:1,2,22</p> <p>civility 5:19</p> <p>clear 4:22 5:23 26:15</p> <p>clearly 27:1 28:1</p> <p>close 25:3</p> <p>Cofer 8:7</p> <p>cohesion 10:9 13:6</p> <p>come 6:2 9:15 21:25 25:23 31:3 32:16 33:6</p> <p>comment 4:6 5:5 6:1,5 7:5 31:23 34:6</p> <p>comments 5:18 6:9 7:14 29:1,1 30:7</p> <p>Commerce 32:9</p> <p>commission 1:10 4:5,18,20,25 5:12 5:22 6:1,16 7:7,12 7:13,18 8:4,19,25 9:19 13:14 14:12 14:15,17,23,24 17:17 18:13 19:20 19:25 22:9,23 23:15 24:13 25:22 25:25 28:4 34:4,7</p> <p>commissioner 2:4</p>
---	---	---	--	--

<p>9:14,16,17 10:14 10:19,25 11:2,5 11:10,15,17,19,22 12:9,12,14,16,17 12:24 13:3,4,9,23 14:6 19:17 20:2,4 20:11,14,21,24 29:7 33:14 34:13 35:8,11 commissioners 3:2 6:8 committee 8:23 16:16 20:8 29:4 communications 12:6 communities 15:2 15:15 21:2 23:16 community 19:9,11 24:24 27:2,25 28:15 29:18 compact 23:13 completing 17:11 compromise 17:15 <b>CONCLUDED</b> 35:17 conclusion 6:2 configuration 29:15 30:11 Congress 34:5 congressional 17:8 20:8,18 31:13 consider 16:17 19:14,15 35:2 consideration 19:7 22:10 considered 6:18 consistent 8:18 28:14 constituent 15:22 Constitution 4:5,11 4:22 constitutional 4:8 4:13 construction 8:15 contained 26:19 29:17 contiguity 28:14 contiguous 23:7,13 23:24 25:2 26:12 26:22 continue 23:14 30:10 33:9 continuing 26:11 27:17 continuity 19:9 26:21 convene 4:4</p>	<p>correct 20:16 counties 20:17 21:19 29:25 country 31:12,19 county 10:24,25 11:5,25 15:11 16:18,19 19:3,5 19:22,23 21:6,10 23:7,8,10,20 32:19 33:13,13,14 36:6 County/Newton 21:5 couple 7:3 course 5:7 8:12 14:25 30:4 33:13 court 7:6,11,15,19 12:11 16:23 36:10 courts 5:3 15:10 17:13 create 19:23 created 4:5 19:20 criteria 19:13,15 28:10 crossed 21:8 CRR 3:18 36:23 crystal 33:4 CSR 3:18 36:23 current 29:15 currently 23:5,12 26:19 28:24 31:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>D</b></p> <hr/> <p>D 4:1 26:4 Dade 21:10,12 Dallas 32:19 damage 11:25 Danette 2:8 23:2 day 10:5 22:25 days 5:15 10:6 debated 5:21,25 18:14 decade 25:6 decide 7:12 decision 5:4 decisions 24:16 define 10:20 defined 33:2 degree 26:6 deliberation 7:9 delighted 8:20,24 demand 34:18 Democrats 4:20 demographic 26:16 demography 26:13 27:2,9 department 12:2,3</p>	<p>departments 12:1 description 2:17 20:6 destruction 11:24 devastation 6:24 development 31:17 deviation 18:21,22 differences 22:2,7 35:6 different 10:1 difficult 14:24 15:5 15:7 18:25 direction 33:18 director 20:7 discourse 35:1 discretion 4:14 discuss 25:15 discussed 5:21,25 17:20,23,24 18:14 19:20 discussion 8:21 21:4 disposal 9:1 distributed 18:12 district 9:20,22,23 10:1,10,17,21 11:9,11 13:2 15:6 15:7 16:18 19:21 19:24 20:8,18 21:4,6,10,18,22 23:5,9,11 24:2 26:11 28:6,10,25 29:17 31:9 districts 4:9 5:13,16 5:17 18:25 20:16 20:25 23:12,13 26:22 28:5 34:12 diverse 32:13 diversity 27:9 28:2 32:15 divide 16:12 28:11 division 1:5 3:13 31:11 Dixon 2:14,19 28:23 28:24 29:10,13 30:12,16,19 Dixon-1 2:18 documents 6:15 doing 9:19 13:14 16:8 done 20:22 Doug 3:3 4:18 19:19 doughnut 15:11,11 15:12 18:15 30:10 Douglas 15:13 23:11 down 5:24 6:1 7:15</p>	<p>12:5 15:10 32:19 33:9 36:14 draft 26:24 draw 15:1 16:5,7,21 16:23 17:6 21:16 21:17 24:10 drawn 21:16 24:6,8 24:8 draws 19:20 drew 15:4,10 duplicate 29:4 duties 11:22 duty 13:20 <b>D-A-N-E-T-T-E</b> 23:2</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>E</b></p> <hr/> <p>E 3:1,1 4:1,1 each 6:21 24:12 earlier 19:8 30:10 easier 12:20 east 1:15 3:20 32:24 easy 10:20 18:3 economic 27:10 edges 25:12 eight 34:8,16,18 eight-year 34:20 either 7:11 13:1 elderly 28:1 elect 20:9 elected 15:20 elections 18:24,24 19:1,2 elements 28:2 eligible 34:7 emergency 12:4 enact 34:20 end 5:3,7 21:4 enforcement 12:4 entered 14:7 entirely 27:13 29:17 equality 29:22 essentially 26:19 established 28:11 establishing 28:4 ethics 34:11 ethnic 27:9 28:2 event 8:20 12:8 ever 27:8 evermore 26:15 27:24 every 4:10 7:4,8 everybody's 31:22 everyone 24:11 evidence 27:18 evident 27:24 exactitudes 19:21</p>	<p>exactly 10:21 27:15 example 23:17 exciting 25:17 exclusion 34:20 Excuse 29:7 executive 20:7 exercise 6:21 Exhibit 2:17,23 expressed 26:23 extent 10:17 extra 23:18 ex-urban 26:20 27:6 28:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>F</b></p> <hr/> <p>fail 4:25 failed 16:22 35:4 fails 7:13 fair 23:22 24:7,24 fairly 32:13 falls 23:19 far 10:1,7,7 11:1 26:22,24 31:3 32:23 fastest-growing 10:4 favor 13:25 16:8 35:12 Fax 3:23 feel 35:4 feeling 10:9 felt 16:22 few 23:20 29:24 fill 7:25 11:13 28:19 30:7 final 5:4 6:2 first 6:22 9:15 14:17,25 18:7 19:10 fit 10:17 23:25 fits 23:21 five 15:14 18:25 21:12 floating 17:20 folks 21:2 follow 4:12 fondness 9:21 forever 27:20,21 forgot 11:22 form 7:25 22:14 28:19 30:7 forms 11:13 forth 36:13,17 fortunate 10:11 found 12:19,20 four 18:25 34:13,15 34:16,17</p>
---	---	--	---	--

<p>free 27:16  <b>freedom</b> 6:22  <b>from</b> 4:23 6:5 9:20              9:21 10:1,7 13:15              14:10,12,13 17:24              21:3,7,22 24:6,9              24:11,15,25 29:8              32:13  <b>front</b> 16:23  <b>fulfill</b> 4:8  <b>further</b> 10:23 18:4              27:25,25 28:21              32:22  <b>future</b> 16:6</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>G</b></p> <p><b>G</b> 4:1  <b>general</b> 9:12 25:9  <b>generally</b> 30:9  <b>generated</b> 5:22  <b>geographic</b> 28:14  <b>Geographically</b>              15:17  <b>geometrically</b> 10:2  <b>getting</b> 17:11  <b>give</b> 12:22 13:5  <b>given</b> 17:22  <b>glad</b> 4:14 9:4 11:15  <b>go</b> 8:17 9:6 10:23              11:1 12:9 17:7,12              18:4 21:7 22:4              24:21 25:3 31:1              32:23,23  <b>goal</b> 5:1 31:23 35:3  <b>goals</b> 4:7  <b>God</b> 31:18  <b>goes</b> 14:20 15:12              21:22 32:18  <b>going</b> 5:1,25 8:15              17:12,15 21:11,22              21:23 22:5,9 23:8              29:3 30:3 32:22              33:17 34:5 35:5  <b>good</b> 8:4,8,14 19:4              21:18 22:24 28:23              31:15,15,16  <b>Gordon</b> 2:12 30:21              30:23 31:4  <b>gossip</b> 17:20 21:13  <b>government</b> 30:24  <b>governor</b> 17:10  <b>grab</b> 25:3  <b>gracious</b> 7:23  <b>great</b> 9:21 10:2 16:8              33:3  <b>greater</b> 27:18 28:1  <b>Greene</b> 10:24 11:25</p>	<p>16:19 19:22 23:8          23:9,20 29:19          32:6 33:14 36:6  <b>group</b> 5:24  <b>Grove</b> 23:22,22              24:24,24  <b>growth</b> 27:3,4,17              32:21 33:6,9,17  <b>guarantee</b> 34:21  <b>guess</b> 12:24 31:6  <b>G-O-R-D-O-N</b> 31:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>H</b></p> <p><b>half</b> 21:15  <b>halls</b> 8:16  <b>hand</b> 32:7,7  <b>handful</b> 23:6  <b>hands</b> 31:14  <b>happen</b> 5:2  <b>happens</b> 19:2  <b>happy</b> 15:24 17:19              17:22  <b>hard</b> 14:18 16:11              20:12  <b>Harpool</b> 3:3 4:3,18              7:2 8:22 9:7 10:12              10:15 11:12,16,18              11:21 13:11,24              14:2,4,8 15:21              18:4,10 19:6,13              22:12,17,22 25:20              28:18,21 29:12              30:6,13,17,20              31:1,14,24 33:21              33:25 34:3,10,15              34:19 35:10,12,15  <b>haven</b> 25:6  <b>having</b> 17:8 19:1              30:3 32:8  <b>head</b> 30:16  <b>hear</b> 4:6,15 6:12              17:19,23 18:16              25:17  <b>heard</b> 24:5,6,8,11              24:25 29:8 32:4  <b>hearing</b> 1:12 4:17              5:5,9  <b>heavy</b> 12:2  <b>help</b> 11:7 12:6,7,19  <b>helped</b> 18:12  <b>helpful</b> 10:20 12:1  <b>her</b> 31:4  <b>hereof</b> 36:14  <b>Hesser</b> 3:14  <b>higher</b> 28:1  <b>highway</b> 12:2  <b>Hill</b> 2:10 25:23,24</p>	<p>25:25 28:20 32:11  <b>hold</b> 18:8  <b>hole</b> 15:11,11 18:15  <b>hope</b> 10:5 31:16  <b>hopeful</b> 5:4 6:5  <b>horrific</b> 11:24  <b>hospitality</b> 9:8  <b>host</b> 7:23  <b>house</b> 5:12,13,16              8:22 14:23 16:24  <b>humorously</b> 18:5  <b>H-I-L-L</b> 26:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>I</b></p> <p><b>idea</b> 9:12 22:8              25:10  <b>ideal</b> 16:18 18:19              21:6,9,20  <b>ideas</b> 29:13,24 35:1  <b>identical</b> 27:13  <b>identify</b> 7:18 13:7  <b>important</b> 6:7,10              8:21 17:5 26:3  <b>income</b> 27:18  <b>increasing</b> 27:3  <b>INDEX</b> 2:1  <b>information</b> 8:5              35:2  <b>input</b> 4:7 5:10 6:18              34:22  <b>instead</b> 33:22  <b>institution</b> 30:23  <b>intent</b> 5:1  <b>interest</b> 19:9,9,11              21:2 22:6 29:18  <b>interests</b> 21:7 23:13              23:16 26:21 28:15  <b>issues</b> 19:7 32:10  <b>item</b> 13:12  <b>i.e</b> 27:25</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>J</b></p> <p><b>James</b> 8:7  <b>Jasper</b> 15:15 21:5,8  <b>Jeff</b> 3:5 5:9 19:17  <b>Jenkins</b> 3:14  <b>job</b> 14:18 17:18              20:5,8,12 30:3  <b>Joe</b> 14:10  <b>John</b> 3:4 11:3 24:20              32:1  <b>join</b> 6:24 29:18  <b>Joplin</b> 6:23 11:25              21:3,7,8  <b>jurisdiction</b> 5:16,17  <b>just</b> 6:24 8:1,23              9:12,13,25 10:8</p>	<p>11:23 18:23 19:1          19:18,24 25:12          29:6,13 30:23          31:16,22 32:20          33:10 34:16,24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>K</b></p> <p><b>Kansas</b> 5:10,14              10:6  <b>Kathy</b> 3:8  <b>keep</b> 4:8 10:9 15:8              16:9 18:3 19:1              23:15 25:2 29:1              29:14  <b>keeping</b> 16:17 32:4  <b>keeps</b> 18:14  <b>Ken</b> 8:4  <b>kept</b> 15:3 16:25              17:2,4 19:22 24:3              25:1  <b>kind</b> 19:10 32:18,19  <b>Kinne</b> 2:12 30:21              30:21,23,25 31:2              31:4 32:1,7 33:8              33:24 34:1,2 35:5  <b>know</b> 6:12 7:19,22              10:21,23 11:6              12:23 13:1 15:1              15:21,22 21:1,8              21:15 24:13 25:5              30:2 31:4,22              32:22 33:12 34:5              34:23  <b>knows</b> 27:15 31:18  <b>Kreider</b> 16:24  <b>Kristina</b> 3:14  <b>K-I-N-N-E</b> 31:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>L</b></p> <p><b>land</b> 33:10,12  <b>Lane</b> 23:4  <b>last</b> 5:6 11:4 13:16              25:6  <b>later</b> 6:9  <b>law</b> 4:11 12:4 34:19  <b>Lawrence</b> 21:24              22:8  <b>lawyer</b> 14:10 31:16  <b>least</b> 26:3  <b>leave</b> 11:14 22:15              29:2,23 30:7  <b>leaving</b> 12:6  <b>legal</b> 4:12 19:7,8  <b>Let</b> 4:15 14:8  <b>life</b> 6:13 11:25  <b>lifelong</b> 26:1  <b>lifting</b> 12:2</p>	<p><b>light</b> 28:25  <b>like</b> 9:14 14:6 15:2              15:15 17:16 20:25              23:13,14,15,16,17              24:12 25:11 27:21              32:10 33:19 35:4  <b>liking</b> 19:25  <b>limits</b> 10:16,24 11:6              23:7 27:13 33:3              33:23  <b>line</b> 21:9 23:8,20  <b>listen</b> 24:10  <b>LITIGATION</b> 3:19  <b>little</b> 4:15 8:10              12:22 15:17 21:24              29:9 31:12  <b>live</b> 16:14,14,15              17:1 21:25  <b>lived</b> 12:21,21              27:20  <b>local</b> 31:7  <b>look</b> 26:13 32:22              35:2  <b>looking</b> 33:5  <b>lose</b> 19:4 21:23,24  <b>loss</b> 11:25  <b>lot</b> 8:11,11,15 19:3              19:4 24:14 30:3,4              31:19 32:10,20  <b>louder</b> 29:9  <b>Louis</b> 5:11,15 10:6  <b>love</b> 21:25 25:15,17  <b>lower</b> 27:18  <b>lunch</b> 27:16</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>M</b></p> <p><b>machine</b> 12:3  <b>machinery</b> 12:3  <b>Madrid</b> 3:20  <b>maintain</b> 5:19 26:11  <b>maintaining</b> 28:5  <b>make</b> 5:18,19,23              7:14 9:2 20:25              24:16,21 26:22              34:6  <b>makes</b> 4:22 18:15              18:16  <b>making</b> 5:4 26:2  <b>man</b> 31:15  <b>management</b> 12:5  <b>many</b> 9:12 12:1              20:15,21  <b>map</b> 4:24,25 5:6,21              15:9 16:21,23              17:6,17,19,22,23              17:23 18:11 19:19              21:17,17 24:6</p>
---	--	---	--	---

<p>26:24 30:9 31:13 31:18 35:3 maps 5:22,24 15:1,4 16:5,7 21:16 24:7 24:8,10 29:25 mater 7:23 Matt 3:14 matters 6:13 Maupin 3:4 4:19 6:19 11:2,3 13:21 22:21 24:19,20 25:4,8,18 27:2 32:1,2 33:4,20 34:18 Mavis 2:6 18:2 22:21 may 1:13 10:22,22 11:19 31:23 maybe 20:5 21:14 34:21 Mazur 3:5 13:23 19:17,17 20:2 35:8 ma'am 20:21 31:4 McCLURE 8:3,4 9:9 McDonald 21:22 22:7 mean 18:21 21:1 32:22 measurement 32:20 meet 5:13,14 meeting 4:4 13:16 13:18 member 6:15 7:4,8 34:6 members 4:20,21 7:3,17 8:3 9:1,18 14:9,16 25:24 mention 11:23 mentioned 19:8,19 28:16 32:11 middle 30:14 MIDWEST 3:19 might 32:21 Miles 3:6 12:10 13:21,25 14:4 mind 4:8 12:10 24:9 29:14 mindful 7:15 minutes 13:13,15 13:18 Missouri 1:7,16 4:10 6:4,6 7:22 8:6 10:3 15:14 16:7 20:15 23:1,3 24:17 25:5,10</p>	<p>36:4,12 Mo 3:21 36:10 moment 6:21,25 7:1 Monday 1:13 more 6:7,10,13 11:19 16:4,13 19:2 23:19 25:2 26:22 27:8,25 33:22 morning 6:4,6,14 8:4 22:24,25 28:23 29:5 mornings 5:14 most 18:5 motion 35:8 moved 33:15 movement 27:18 moves 25:9 moving 12:3 MSA 32:18,20 much 15:16,18 16:20 21:19 22:4 22:7,8,18 23:25 24:18 30:1 31:10 31:11,11 32:7,16 33:2,20 must 4:11,22 19:7 M-A-V-I-S 18:2</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>N</b></p> <hr/> <p>N 3:1 4:1 name 4:17 8:4 12:11 18:1 23:2 25:25 26:4 native 27:23 near 29:22 necessary 29:21 need 7:25 8:25 11:1 11:13 13:7,12,17 24:2 25:2 28:3 31:19 32:11 needs 28:11 neighbors 6:6,11,23 12:8 never 18:6 new 15:5,7 21:15 25:6,12 28:10 Newton 15:15 21:8 next 5:6,15 33:6,17 34:8 nice 13:6 17:21 Nixa 33:9 Nodding 30:16 nominate 13:21 nominating 17:8 nominations 13:25 none 14:3 28:19</p>	<p>35:16 north 16:11,14 27:22 33:11,12,18 northeast 32:24 northern 15:16 21:13 Notary 36:11,25 note 19:18 notion 26:10 28:5 Notwithstanding 26:8 number 17:4,6 29:15,19,20 numbers 21:9 24:1 NUMEROUS 14:1 35:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>O</b></p> <hr/> <p>O 4:1 objectives 4:7 obviously 12:20 19:14 21:3 32:23 occur 25:11 occurred 27:22 occurs 4:10 offered 26:9 office 1:4,6 3:12 6:16,17 12:19,25 officeholder 26:5 officer 32:9 Oh 12:12 Okay 13:9 34:16 once 30:22 34:5 one 5:11,12 10:17 11:13,19 12:14 15:16,18 17:5 18:12,13,19 19:6 19:8,13 21:15,15 26:3 29:15,17 34:5,6,22 35:6 ones 15:9 only 16:3 18:20 34:5 open 7:24 19:2 opening 8:13 opportunity 32:14 opposed 14:2 28:7 35:15 order 9:10 original 2:23 other 6:9 11:12 13:24 19:14 20:25 21:1 22:2,12 23:21 25:1,16 29:2 31:24 33:25 others 10:1 22:22 30:20</p>	<p>otherwise 28:13 ourselves 34:12 out 8:1 11:13 12:7 14:19 15:24 16:4 17:17,20 18:23 21:13 23:18 25:3 28:19 30:7 32:16 33:5 outlying 27:5 outside 26:18 over 5:15,16,17 8:10 11:16 20:14 21:11 25:6 overpopulated 21:24 own 32:11 Ozark 21:22 22:5 33:9 o'clock 5:11,12</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>P</b></p> <hr/> <p>P 3:1,1 4:1 PAGE 2:3,17 pages 36:18 pair 23:25 panel 17:3 parameters 19:8 Parson 21:13 part 8:20 10:4 20:13 21:13,21 29:19 particular 9:10 parties 17:8 partisan 35:6 partisanship 31:11 partners 34:19 party 17:7 21:17 31:9 Passanise 14:10 past 16:10 32:9 people 4:20 9:12 15:25 17:8 18:5 18:20 19:3,5 21:12,25 23:18 24:17 25:16 30:3 percent 27:16 percentage 18:22 perfect 18:23 period 5:7,8 person 26:3 personally 36:12 perspective 26:9 Physical 23:4 place 28:12 32:25 places 5:23 Planning 1:5 3:13 Plaster 1:15</p>	<p>play 31:5 please 6:14 7:13,17 10:13 11:21 12:11 16:16 18:3,9 34:22 35:1 point 29:18 points 29:6 policy 8:21 political 32:13 politics 15:22 Polk 32:19 33:13 population 11:3 18:18 25:5 27:3 27:12,19 28:1 29:22 33:15 possibility 17:14 possible 10:22 24:3 24:4 29:22 poverty 28:1 pray 22:19 preceded 26:7 precedence 6:14 preceding 36:18 precincts 24:4 29:21 preference 25:13 prepared 13:15 present 13:19 22:23 25:21 29:3 36:13 preserve 29:15 president 8:5,7 30:22 pretty 32:7,16 33:2 principal 26:5 principles 4:7,12,13 probably 10:6 21:6 21:11,14 32:14,25 33:17,22 problem 15:17,25 16:2 problems 16:9,10 proceeding 6:20 proceedings 7:7,24 35:17 36:13,15,17 process 4:10,13,16 5:3,21 Proctor 2:8 22:24 23:2 24:19,23 25:7,14,19 Professional 36:9 36:24 proper 27:8 33:1 proposed 5:25 protection 34:10 proud 22:1 provide 7:5 9:13 public 1:12 4:6,17</p>
--	---	--	--	--

<p>5:5,9 6:1 8:19 9:11 26:14 36:11 36:25 pulling 23:18 purposes 8:2 9:13 pursuant 4:5 push 33:11 put 15:7 18:13 29:24 30:14 <b>P-R-O-C-T-O-R</b> 23:3 <b>P.O</b> 23:3</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Q</b></p> <p>question 12:15 18:11 questioning 7:19 questions 7:20,20 9:9 10:13 11:12 18:3 19:16 22:12 28:17,18 30:8,17 31:24 33:25 quickly 13:6 quiet 8:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>R</b></p> <p>R 3:1 4:1 races 19:4 racial 28:2 railroaded 14:7 rancor 31:11 reach 4:25 7:13 ready 12:7 real 22:2 really 9:25 10:2 25:6 27:4 30:1 31:20,21 Realtime 36:10 reason 13:16 reasons 26:6 reassign 29:20 receive 4:6 5:9 9:11 recognizable 10:20 recognize 10:22 recommendations 29:14 record 8:2 19:18 20:5 28:24 32:3 recorded 7:7 recreation 8:16 recruit 20:9 redistricting 1:6 5:8 6:17 31:13 33:16 reference 12:22 referenced 8:22 9:20 26:24 27:3 referred 30:10</p>	<p>reflected 26:14 27:4 27:11 28:6 regard 11:23,24 26:21 27:1 28:4 regardless 13:5 Registered 36:9,24 remainder 19:22 23:9 remarks 21:1 26:2 rep 15:23 <b>REPORTED</b> 3:18 reporter 7:6,15,19 12:11 36:9,9,10 36:10,24 <b>REPORTER'S</b> 36:1 representative 7:24 16:24 32:12 representing 26:16 28:8,25 represents 9:22 27:17 reproduction 36:17 <b>Republic</b> 23:23 24:24 <b>Republican</b> 20:9 31:9 <b>Republicans</b> 4:21 <b>Republic-Willard</b> 33:16 request 14:25 17:5 requesting 24:5 residence 8:16 resident 26:1 residents 25:6 27:10 resources 9:2 respect 15:1 responsibility 4:9 24:13 responsible 18:6 rest 7:4 30:14 32:6 result 6:10 retain 26:23 28:13 retained 27:6 rethink 18:16 review 7:11 rewrite 4:9 Richele 3:18 36:8 36:23 Ridder 27:15 right 7:22 9:14 13:3 13:9 15:13 16:3 16:24 22:17 24:16 24:22,23 25:20 30:6 31:12,19 34:8</p>	<p>rise 19:3 <b>Riverbend</b> 23:4 room 29:8 <b>Roseann</b> 2:4 12:12 <b>Ross</b> 3:6 12:9,10,14 12:17 13:3,9,22 13:25 14:6,12 15:19 20:4,11,14 20:21,24 roughly 26:11 27:13,16 <b>RPR</b> 3:18 run 34:7 runs 21:21 rural 23:19,20 24:23 26:20 27:7 28:8 30:15 <b>R-O-S-E-A-N-N</b> 12:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>S</b></p> <p>S 3:1 4:1 sad 6:4 22:25 same 15:17,18 22:6 sat 5:24 14:22,23 <b>Saunders</b> 3:7 saw 31:12 saying 10:15 32:15 scenario 23:17 schedules 14:20 schools 26:14 27:12 seat 15:5 21:15 25:9 25:12 33:2 seats 15:15 second 4:17 13:23 35:10,11 secretary 13:15,19 see 6:17 8:17 10:3 17:17 23:15,17 25:11 28:18 30:17 33:9,11 seeing 13:24 27:14 seems 27:21 33:19 seen 25:4 27:22 semester 8:13,14 senate 1:10 3:2 4:4 4:10 5:17 9:23 10:5 14:23 15:4,5 22:23 23:5,9 25:9 25:22 33:2 34:7 34:16 senator 2:14,18 9:15,20 12:9,18 13:8 15:23 16:1,3 18:6 21:13 28:22 28:23 29:10,13 30:8,12,16,18,19</p>	<p>32:16 senatorial 11:8 15:6 15:7,14 16:18 19:4 20:16,19,25 21:6,14,18 23:11 23:12 senators 16:6,6 20:20 senator/commissi... 9:16 sending 12:2 17:9 sense 8:9 26:22 sent 7:24 12:1 separately 19:22 serve 17:9,9 30:2 31:8 service 22:19 services 3:19 8:6 serving 10:8 12:17 24:13 34:2 set 31:17 35:5 36:13 36:17 seventy-six 18:19 several 19:14 23:24 share 4:15 sheet 36:14 sheriff's 12:3 <b>Shorthand</b> 36:8 show 31:18 sides 4:23 17:16 silence 6:21,25 7:1 similar 15:9 21:7 since 13:18 14:9 18:23 20:23 21:2 sir 17:23 18:18 22:16 sit 6:1 sitting 14:22 16:5 situation 18:23 skipped 13:13,16 <b>Skylab</b> 12:5 soccer 31:5 solve 15:25,25 16:11 some 4:14 6:11 8:15 10:5 13:5 18:11 21:2 25:16 26:6,7 31:18 33:11,15,18 somebody 12:7 somehow 16:22 someone 6:12,12 13:17,19 34:23,24 something 7:12 17:15 21:23 34:25 sometimes 27:21 son 31:5 sons 31:6</p>	<p>south 16:12,15 23:8 27:25 32:23 southern 15:18 21:21 31:8 <b>Southwest</b> 6:6 10:3 15:14 20:15 22:25 25:5,9 speak 26:4 29:9,10 <b>Speaker</b> 16:23 speaking 13:7 spell 12:11 spelled 18:2 split 24:4 spoken 6:8 spring 8:13 <b>Springfield</b> 3:21 9:25 10:16 11:4,4 12:22 14:9,10,12 14:13 15:3,12 16:9,11,12,13,13 16:17 18:15 19:11 19:21 23:6,7,21 23:25 24:1,25 26:1,13,14,15 27:8,11,12,23,23 28:7,12 29:16 30:13 31:3 32:5 32:10 33:13,22,23 ss 36:5 St 5:11,15 10:6 staff 9:1 11:14 29:24 standing 12:7 standpoint 32:13 start 6:20 22:5 starting 5:23 33:11 starts 30:22 state 1:7,16 4:9 7:22 8:6 10:4 12:19 15:23 17:7 18:6 20:5,13 24:17 26:17 31:18 36:4 36:11 statistics 32:8 status 27:10 stenotype 36:15 still 33:8 <b>Stone</b> 22:4,6 stressed 15:24 stresses 16:4 strong 10:5 student 1:15 27:11 30:22,24 students 8:11 submit 6:15 22:15 35:1 submitted 6:9 15:9</p>
---	---	---	--	--

<p>substantial 27:17 suburban 26:20 27:6 28:8 successful 31:23 successfully 4:24 suffered 6:23 suggestions 25:10 summer 8:13 Superintendent 27:15 support 4:22 32:3 sure 7:14 9:2 10:14 12:6,12,16 22:14 24:21 25:4 28:19 30:6 surge 33:17 surrounding 19:23 Swan 3:8 29:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>T</b></p> <p>take 7:15 10:12 13:11,12,18,20 19:7 22:10,14 27:5 30:14 taken 17:24 28:3 takes 24:14 taking 14:19 31:21 talent 24:14 talk 21:1 talking 19:11 Taney 22:3,6 task 14:24 17:11 teach 20:9 tedious 24:15 Tel 3:22 tell 4:15 6:14 ten 4:10 5:6 14:22 15:4 16:21 20:17 33:5,6 term 14:7 terms 27:3 28:14,15 terrible 11:24 testified 16:22,24 testify 8:1 14:14 17:3 30:20 34:4 testimonies 25:1 testimony 2:18 7:16 9:11,13 17:22,24 20:3 22:23 24:6 24:10,11 25:21 28:21 29:3,23 32:3 thank 7:2 9:7,17,19 10:8,11 11:10,17 13:10 14:4,6,17 20:2 22:11,17,18 22:19,21,24 24:12</p>	<p>24:17 25:18,20 28:19,20 29:12 30:1,4,18,19 31:21 33:20 34:1 34:2 35:6 thankless 30:2 Thanks 34:2 their 6:15,18 16:1,2 21:9 24:11 26:4 35:1,2 thing 11:20 things 6:7,10 14:25 22:10 32:9 think 6:21 10:16,19 16:17 17:21 18:21 18:22 19:10 21:9 25:16 27:1,14 28:3,11 32:11 33:1,8,17,24 35:3 35:5 thinking 6:22 though 33:11 thought 6:19 9:23 25:14 26:2 34:15 thousand 21:12 three 14:9 29:6,13 29:20,20 through 9:6 17:7 25:15 thrust 5:3 time 8:8,12,14,14 9:13 14:19 15:22 22:19 24:14 29:2 36:15 title 20:5 today 4:6 5:10,18 7:3 9:1,5 14:11 21:3 26:9,25 34:23 today's 13:18 together 5:5 15:16 18:13,15 23:16 24:3 25:1 29:19 29:25 31:5 told 16:2 tomorrow 5:11 tough 15:8 toward 27:18 town 25:3 traffic 8:11 tragic 34:24 train 20:9 transcribed 7:8 36:16 transcript 2:23 7:10 7:21 travel 20:14 30:4</p>	<p>trends 25:5 tried 13:4 16:10 trouble 17:7 true 30:25 36:16 trust 14:20 24:16 try 5:2 6:2 7:18 10:9 13:1 24:9 trying 7:15 12:5 15:7 24:15 34:11 tugging 30:4 twelve 34:21 two 5:15 14:25 17:6 18:5,7 19:10 25:1 29:25 typically 26:3</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>U</b></p> <p>ultimately 7:11 unanimously 6:8 under 6:22 understand 5:20 7:17 32:15 undivided 29:16 uniformity 9:24 10:10 Union 1:15 unique 24:25 uniquely 28:6 unity 31:18,19 university 1:16 7:23 8:6,16 until 17:24 24:6 urban 26:16,17 28:6 urbanized 27:8 urgent 6:13 use 7:8 32:18,19 Used 31:5</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>V</b></p> <p>venture 14:18 very 5:20 8:18,21 9:4 10:20 15:5,5 15:16 16:11,19,20 17:5,14,19,21,22 21:18 22:1,4,8,18 24:15,18 29:1 30:1 31:3,14 32:23 33:20 vice 3:4 4:19 6:19 8:5 11:2 13:21 22:21 24:19 25:4 25:8,18 32:1 33:4 33:20 34:18 victims 6:23 Virgil 2:10 25:25 visit 25:16</p>	<p>voice 16:2 void 24:9 voluntarily 13:13 volunteering 14:5 Voting 24:4 V-I-R-G-I-L 25:25</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>W</b></p> <p>waiting 17:10 Walnut 23:22 want 5:19,19 7:5 8:7 9:2 10:8 11:23 14:17 16:12,13 24:21 29:4 30:1 32:21 34:6 wanted 6:13 31:20 wards 23:6,6,24 25:2 way 8:1 Webster 15:13 23:10 32:19 Wednesday 5:12 week 8:10 welcome 4:3 8:7 9:5 9:18 10:25 18:10 25:19 28:17,22 31:2 well 11:5 12:24 15:16 18:18 21:5 31:5 32:22 33:8 went 31:13 were 4:25 5:2 6:4 7:3 12:17 13:1 28:15 36:15 west 23:4 27:23 32:24 33:15,18 we'll 10:5 35:2,2 we're 5:1,4,20 8:19 8:23 9:1 16:5,6 21:23,24,25 27:14 27:16 33:10 34:11 35:5 we've 32:3 35:4 whole 5:22,24 15:3 15:8 16:9,13,17 17:1,2,4 wholly 26:8 Willard 23:3,18,19 23:22 24:20 Williams 3:9 34:13 35:11 willing 6:9 9:11 13:19 30:5 34:20 willingness 30:2 wish 9:5,12 22:22 wishing 11:18 14:14 15:23 25:21 34:3</p>	<p>witness 7:25 13:12 19:16 22:13,14 witnesses 2:3 18:7 19:10 26:7 29:2 wonderful 10:3 work 8:15 9:19 16:10 worked 15:22 20:15 20:18 worse 14:20 worthy 14:18 wouldn't 12:10 write 34:11 writing 6:10 written 2:18 6:15 29:3,23 wrong 34:17</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>X</b></p> <p>X 16:3</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>Y</b></p> <p>Yancy 3:9 year 15:6 27:14 years 4:11 5:6 14:22 15:4 16:21 20:22 33:5,7 34:8 34:14,16,17</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>#</b></p> <p>#385 36:10,23</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>0</b></p> <p>03 9:21</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>1</b></p> <p>14 2:6 179,000 11:10 179,669 11:8 18:19</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;"><b>2</b></p> <p>20th 15:6 16:18 21:20 23:8,11,12 23:22 24:20 26:19 28:7 29:19,21 32:5 2011 1:13 22 2:8 23 1:13 23,000 8:10 2422 3:20 25 2:10 275,000 11:6 28 2:14 29 2:19 29th 21:21</p>
--	---	---	---	---

<p><u>3</u> 3,000 18:20 30 23:5 28:25 30th 2:19 9:20,22 10:10 11:8,11 23:12 24:2,21 26:11,18 28:6 29:16,21 32:4 31 2:12 3802 23:4</p> <hr/> <p><u>4</u> 417-877-9700 3:22 417-877-9704 3:23</p> <hr/> <p><u>5</u> 50 27:16 548 23:3</p> <hr/> <p><u>6</u> 65804 3:21</p> <hr/> <p><u>7</u> 7th 20:8,18</p> <hr/> <p><u>9</u> 9 2:4 9:00 1:14 9:45 35:17 95 9:21 97 20:23</p>				
--	--	--	--	--